
FARMINGTON CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
Thursday, February 12, 2009 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION STUDY/WORK SESSION 
 
  Present:  Chairman John Bilton, Commission members Steve Andersen, Craig 
Kartchner, Geoff Butler, Michael Wagstaff, Jim Young, City Planner David Petersen, Assistant 
City Planner Glenn Symes, and Recording Secretary Cynthia DeCoursey.  Commissioners Rick 
Draper and Randy Hillier were not in attendance. 
 
 Chairman John Bilton welcomed the Commission members, City Staff and others in 
attendance and began discussion at 6:30 p.m. 
 
(Agenda Item #1) Approval of Minutes  
 
 Chairman Bilton requested that the text on page two be changed to the following:    The 
Commission would not take a straw vote regarding Station Parkway in Chapter 18, but they 
would voice their opinions.  Steve Andersen asked about the December 4, 2008 minutes, and 
Glenn Symes stated that more progress has been made, but they still have not heard from Rick 
Wyss or Kevin Poff.  
 
(Agenda Item #2) City Council Report  
 
 Glenn Symes said the rezone for City Hall is finished and has been changed to BR.  The 
Board of Adjustment item also passed.  Agenda Item #6 was continued.  He said Agenda Item 
#14, the sign ordinance, would be discussed in the regular session.  He said they have made 
progress regarding SPARC. 
 
(Agenda Item #3) Farmington City – (Public Hearing) – Applicant is requesting a 
recommendation for amendments to the City’s Master Transportation Plan, the Mixed Use 
ordinance (Ch. 18) and the Site Development Standards (Ch. 7).  The proposed changes 
include amendments to the cross section and proposed location of a major collector road 
running northwest from Park Lane west of I-15 and connecting to Burke Lane as well as 
administrative review for public street standards not listed (ZT-1-09), (ZT-2-09)  
 
 Chairman Bilton asked about the main issues regarding this Item.  David Petersen said 
Staff does not think this is a necessary amendment because of the decision to continue with the 
3-lane cross section as stated in the general plan.  Staff does not think a zone text change is 
necessary either because Chapter 18 calls for a 3-lane road.  Mr. Petersen said Staff would be 
concentrating on the proposed changes which include amendments to the cross section and the 
proposed location of a major collector road running northwest from Park Lane west of I-15 and 
connecting to Burke Lane as well as administrative review for street standards not listed.  Mr. 
Petersen informed the Commission that these changes would be beneficial to property owners 
who develop in mixed-use areas and would give them more flexibility.  When developers present 
a standard that is slightly different from the standard in the ordinance, they would not have to go 
through a legislative act to amend the ordinance.  The City Council and Planning Commission 
would be able to handle the change administratively.  Mr. Petersen suggested the Commission 

 1



move Agenda Item #7 to be heard directly following Agenda Item #3.  He then referred to a 
handout regarding this issue and said that of the three alternatives, Staff recommends option one 
because of the ease and flexibility of the options that would be available.  Michael Wagstaff 
asked if this would give City Staff administrative review authority.  Mr. Petersen replied that 
was not the case—the City Council and Planning Commission would have the administrative 
review authority.  
 
(Agenda Item #4) - Farmington City – (Public Hearing) – Applicant is requesting a 
recommendation for a Scenic Byways Overlay ordinance proposed to be Chapter 41 of the 
Zoning Ordinance.  The proposed overlay zone addresses design standards for property 
adjacent to and visible from the Legacy Highway in Farmington (ZT-7-08)  
 
 Chairman Bilton asked for comments regarding this Item.  Glenn Symes reported that 
the notice was mailed to about 250 people, and there would be another public hearing tonight.  
He said members of the Pack family would be in attendance to express their concerns.  Mr. 
Symes said they are concerned about the design standards regarding their light manufacturing 
zone.  The LM&B zone does not have a lot of design guidelines, so there is flexibility for 
property owners, however, they are concerned about the possible impact this ordinance would 
have on their property as they look toward development.  Some of their concerns are lighting, 
signage, and the distance from Legacy Highway.  Mr. Petersen stated that the five cities 
involved with Legacy Highway are trying to be as consistent as possible with the 14 miles of 
Legacy Highway, and they are all hoping for compatibility between cities.   
 
(Agenda Item #5) Farmington City – (Public Hearing) – Applicant is requesting a 
recommendation for an amendment to the Official Zoning Map creating a Scenic Byways 
Overlay Zone.  The general vicinity for the proposed overlay zone is Legacy Highway/I-15 
south of State Street to the Centerville City limits between 200 West and along 600 West.  
The proposed overlay zone is associated with a proposed zone text amendment to Chapter 
41 Scenic Byway Overlay which addresses design standards for property adjacent to and 
visible from Legacy Highway in Farmington (ZT-07-08)  
 
 Chairman Bilton asked for comments from Staff.  Glenn Symes stated that a sentence 
in the text of this ordinance regarding residential architectural design is questionable and could 
be troublesome for anyone wanting to build a house.  The text currently reads: “substantial and 
or permanent use of stucco and unnatural appearing materials such as metal, glass, vinyl or 
plastics are prohibited.”  He said all of the Miller Meadows subdivision and any future 
subdivisions would be affected by this.  He pointed out that on the previous page of the zoning 
ordinance, the commercial, industrial and institutional buildings have the same sentence but 
without “stucco”, so he believes the text was designed specifically for houses.  Mr. Symes and 
the Commission agree this text would be difficult to enforce because of the extensive use of 
stucco on houses in Utah.  Chairman Bilton asked if Staff would like to see these changes 
made, and Mr. Symes replied they would.   The Commission discussed a few more details such 
as the boundaries involved, the possible minimum distance, federal money and fencing.   
 
(Agenda Item #6) -  Anel Bowman – (Public Hearing) – Applicant is requesting a 
conditional use permit for a home occupation license for a home-based child care facility at 
323 North Frontier Road (C-1-09)  
 
 Glenn Symes said the current ordinance states that if a home-based child care facility has 
eight or fewer students, Planning Commission approval would not be required.  However, if they 
have more than eight children, Planning Commission approval is required.  Glenn Symes said 
she does not anticipate having up to 16 children, but there may be times when she could possibly 
have more than eight.  Mr. Symes said he knows of one neighbor who is against this conditional 
use permit, and there were a few comments regarding other issues involved with this request. 

 2



  
 Chairman Bilton stated that Agenda Item #8 and Agenda Item #9 would be discussed in 
the regular session, and the work session ended at 6:58 p.m. 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR SESSION 
 
 Present:  Chairman John Bilton, Commission members Steve Andersen, Geoff Butler, 
Craig Kartchner, Michael Wagstaff, Jim Young, City Planner David Petersen, Assistant City 
Planner Glenn Symes, and Recording Secretary Cynthia DeCoursey.  Commissioners Rick 
Draper and Randy Hillier were not in attendance. 
 
 Chairman Bilton welcomed the public, Planning Commission members, and City Staff 
to the meeting at 7:00 p.m.  Craig Kartchner offered the invocation. 
 
Approval of Minutes (Agenda Item #1)  
 
 Chairman Bilton said that the minutes of the Planning Commission meeting on January 
29, 2009 were discussed in the work session.  Michael Wagstaff made a motion to approve the 
minutes with one change on page two confirming that the Commission would not do a straw vote 
but would offer individual comments.  Jim Young seconded the motion, and it was unanimously 
approved.  Craig Kartchner and Geoff Butler abstained because they did not attend the 
meeting.  
 
City Council Report (Agenda Item #2)  
 
 
 David Petersen said the City Council approved the rezoning of the City Hall property to 
Business Residential.  The City Council also approved the change to the Board of Adjustments 
Chapter 5 which made it more in line with the state code.  The public hearing regarding the 
Master Transportation Plan was continued to their next meeting, and the same item will be 
considered by the Planning Commission tonight.  The City Council would like to appoint 
Planning Commission members to serve on a sign ordinance revision subcommittee.  The 
SPARC bylaws will be reviewed and made available to those involved. 
 
 
Farmington City – (Public Hearing) – Applicant is requesting a recommendation for 
amendments to the City’s Master Transportation Plan, the Mixed Use ordinance (Ch. 18) 
and the Site Development Standards (Ch. 7).  The proposed changes include amendments 
to the cross section and proposed location of a major collector road running northwest 
from Park Lane west of I-15 and connecting to Burke Lane as well as administrative 
review for public street standards not listed (ZT-1-09), (ZT-2-09) (Agenda Item #3)  
 
Background Information
 
 David Petersen referred to the overhead map of the proposed Station Parkway 3-lane 
cross section and said Staff does not think the general plan amendment is necessary.  Regarding 
the zone text change, there are small differences that exist between the Staff proposal and 
Chapter 18, so they are proposing a solution where these differences can be resolved 
administratively instead of through the legislative process.  Chairman Bilton asked if the 

 3



Planning Commission would be approving an actual cross section tonight.  Mr. Petersen replied 
that Agenda Item #7 is a cross section and would be presented after this Agenda Item.  Staff 
asked the Commission to consider the text in the last three pages of the staff report that refers to 
mixed-use districts.  In Section 104, the following sentence was added:  “The City may make 
adjustments to street standards and side treatment standards as set forth in Chapter 7.”  This 
adjustment in the text should provide continuity and consistency.  Mr. Petersen said the City 
Attorney asked that another change be referenced on page 1 of the draft:  the phrase “and Section 
12-8-100 of Title 12” was added to the text.  David Petersen showed the last two slides of the 
proposed alignment.  He said this plan allows for flexibility and minor adjustments, and the text 
in the regulating plan regarding this issue does not need to be amended. 
 
  Chairman Bilton welcomed Scout Troop 52 from west Farmington. 
 
Public Hearing Opened 
  
 Chairman Bilton opened the public hearing at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 Scott Harwood, 33 South Shadow Breeze Road, Haws Company, said they are fine with 
what is being proposed tonight.  Item #3 on their list was to include street lighting on the side 
treatment.  The other items they submitted were all addressed. 
 
 Carl Asay, 850 South 650 West, Farmington, said he received a letter from the City.  He 
has lived in Farmington since 1972.  He enjoys his cattle and his farm, and he wants to continue 
his way of life.  He asked the Commission how this ordinance will affect his property.  
Chairman Bilton asked where his property was located, and he realized that Mr. Asay was 
speaking to the wrong agenda item.  He told Mr. Asay that his comments would apply to 
Agenda Item #4 later in the meeting. 
 
 Ron Martinez, 5019 South Skyline Drive, Ogden, said that he has been reviewing this 
issue for four years.  On Dec. 22, 2006 America West issued a letter of concern about the 
connection onto Park Lane and said there were better alternatives.  They felt the configuration 
created potential deficiencies for the 240 acres north of Park Lane and that it did not meet UDOT 
standards.  He said Dave Dixon was Planning Commission Chairman when the TOD ordinance 
was being designed, and the mayor allowed Mr. Dixon to make a presentation showing an 
alternative route.  Mr. Dixon’s presentation showed Park Lane making a right hook into the 
Center Cal property.  The response was positive, and Center Cal thought it was a good idea.  
However, during the second meeting, Center Cal said they could not consider the alternative that 
was presented, and Farmington City allowed Center Cal to move forward with their original 
plan.  Mr. Martinez expressed concern regarding the cost of the road, approval from the state of 
Utah, an EIS study, and the RDA fund of $2.7 million to be used to acquire and design the road.  
He asked the Planning Commission to slow the process so his team would have time to show 
documents and provide more information about these issues. 
 
Public Hearing Closed  
 
 Chairman Bilton closed the public hearing at 7:40 p.m. and asked for comment from the 
Commission. Steve Andersen said a lot of effort has been put forth by all parties involved to 

 4



approve this proposal.  He said Rich Haws approves the road attaching to Park Lane and would 
like us to move forward, and he is persuaded in that direction.  But Mr. Martinez says there are 
UDOT and other issues involved, and Mr. Andersen is concerned because Mr. Martinez 
believes the connection was engineered improperly and that there could be significant 
deficiencies assessed against the America West property.  Jim Young asked Mr. Martinez if he 
could show the Commission the plans that his company would like to use.  Mr. Martinez said 
they have drawings for their own property, and he remarked again that the first connection was 
done improperly and incorrectly, and it would create deficiencies on his site.  He questioned the 
design criteria and the engineer who did the work and said America West has been ignored. 
 
 Chairman Bilton stated that the recommendation before the Commission is to amend the 
City’s transportation plan and to approve proposed changes which include a cross section and a 
proposal for this major collector road.  He said he has not had a chance to review it in detail back 
to 2006, but he asked Mr. Martinez why they were discussing this issue tonight and why it has 
not happened in the last 30-month period.  He realizes that Mr. Martinez has provided the 
Commission with some of the data and potential deficiencies, but he does not understand why 
this was not taken care of in the past.  Mr. Martinez said he has been ignored and again asked 
that he be given more time to have a meeting with the City and his team.  Steve Andersen 
commented that this ordinance is giving guidelines for street standards and treatments.  David 
Petersen agreed and said that what is being proposed is not a change to the zone text regarding 
the regulatory plan or the general plan, but Staff is asking to add language to the ordinance which 
will allow administrative review on any property in the mixed use area.  Mr. Andersen agreed 
and said that this particular intersection is not even part of this Item.  This applies not only to that 
intersection but to every road in the development. 
 
Motion
 
 Jim Young made a motion that the Planning Commission recommend that Farmington 
City adopt the text changes that have been recommended and that they be added to Chapter 7 and 
Chapter 18 and including the findings as listed in the staff recommendation.  Steve Andersen 
seconded the motion, and it was unanimously approved. 
 
Findings for Approval: 
 

a. The amendment clarifies the review and approval process in the Zoning 
Ordinance for minor adjustments for street standards to mirror the process in the 
Subdivision Ordinance. 

b. It allows for administrative review without making it necessary to amend the 
ordinance for minor street standard adjustments. 

 
Motion  
 
 Craig Kartchner made a motion that the Planning Commission recommend that the City 
Council not amend the Master Transportation Plan and Chapter 18 regarding street standards for 
principal or major collector streets.  Steve Andersen seconded the motion, and it was 
unanimously approved. 
 

 5



Findings for Approval: 
 

a. The current proposal meets the purpose and intent of the MTP and Zoning 
Ordinance in that all recommendations constitute a 3 lane major collector 
facility, with parallel parking on each side. 

b. The proposed location for the major collector road is consistent with the 
location identified in the General Plan. 

c. The minor adjustment is necessary to better accommodate the Shepard Creek 
crossing, the connection with Burk Lane, and the design and geometry of the 
road. 

 
Motion
 
 Craig Kartchner made a motion to move Agenda Item #7 to be heard directly after 
Agenda Item #3.  Steve Andersen seconded the motion, and it was approved unanimously.    
 
Farmington City - Consideration of a proposed adjustment to the Station Parkway (“Road 
to the North”) street right-of-way cross section (Agenda Item #7)  
 
 David Petersen referred to the recommended cross section on the overhead.  He said it 
was very similar to the cross section shown earlier in the discussion of Item #3.  
 
Motion 
 
 Steve Andersen made a motion to recommend to the City Council the Staff 
configurations A, B, C and D, with the condition that the City Council accept the first motion of 
Agenda Item #3 regarding the zone text changes.  Craig Kartchner seconded the motion, and it 
was unanimously approved.  
 
 
Farmington City – (Public Hearing) – Applicant is requesting a recommendation for a 
Scenic Byways Overlay ordinance proposed to be Chapter 41 of the Zoning Ordinance.  
The proposed overlay zone addresses design standards for property adjacent to and visible 
from the Legacy Highway in Farmington (ZT-7-08) (Agenda Item #4)  
 
Background Information  
 
 Glenn Symes said this request is part of a master plan for Farmington and four other 
cities (North Salt Lake, Woods Cross, West Bountiful, and Centerville) regarding Legacy 
Highway.  He said Staff sent a notice to 250 property owners in the area who might be affected 
by this Overlay ordinance.  He explained that an overlay zone is usually a design guideline for 
aesthetic purposes rather than a use zone.  He stated that no existing zones would change—the 
Agricultural, LM&B zones, etc. would stay in place.  He confirmed that this ordinance would not 
change existing conditional uses--it is not retroactive.  It would apply only to new development.  
Mr. Symes referred to the handout which shows the various components of the Scenic Byways 
Overlay ordinance zone.  He discussed several the issues that would be involved:  signage, 
landscaping/open space area, outdoor lighting, and public right-of-way. 
 

 6



 Steve Andersen asked if this is an overlay of all the zones that are currently in place.  
Glenn Symes answered that was correct--anything that is legal now will not be affected.  These 
overlay standards would be used by any new development--either residential, or commercial or 
industrial—and the desire is to have the standards be consistent between all five cities.  He said 
the building review standards would not change, and the rural feel to Legacy Parkway will 
remain.  David Petersen explained that the main reason the five cities are requesting this overlay 
ordinance is to obtain federal money, and one of the requirements in the application is that these 
five cities set up a corridor management plan.  He said the Scenic Byway Commission has 
already applied for funding to build restrooms. 
 
Public Hearing Opened  
 
 Chairman Bilton opened the public hearing at 8:15 p.m. 
 
 Carl Asay said his concerns and worries have been answered. 
 
 Dean Christensen said his concerns have been answered. 
 
 Clark Skeen, 593 East 2750 North, North Ogden, owner of Quantronix, Inc. 380 South 
200 West, Farmington, said that from his business on the east side of I-15, Legacy Highway 
cannot be seen, and he questioned whether or not the area east of I-15 should be involved in this 
overlay.  He said he owns also owns a piece of development property located on the frontage 
road along Lagoon Drive.  He said he does not have any access from the east side but hopes that 
someday they will have access.  He is concerned that the overlay would subject him to 
restrictions with regard to his development that may have no impact on Legacy Highway.  
 
 DeVan Pack, 677 West 810 North, West Bountiful, explained that his family’s property 
is located on the southern boundary of Farmington just south of Glovers Lane.  He was surprised 
about the short notice he was given regarding issue, and he was overwhelmed by the scope and 
the detail of the proposal.  He talked with Mr. Symes and was somewhat relieved after talking 
with him but feels there are many details to be worked out.  He and his family have a desire to 
keep Legacy Parkway beautiful.  He thinks Farmington has done a good job of controlling 
development in this area.  He expressed his hope that the Planning Commission look carefully at 
this overlay and adjust it to fit Farmington City. 
 
 Brad Pack, 580 East 400 North, Bountiful, Utah said his family owns 70 acres of 
property next to Legacy Highway.  They have built storage units on part of the property, and part 
of the property is zoned A-1.  They plan to develop part of this property and hope to have a golf 
driving range and an indoor basketball or soccer facility.  He said they have drawn up plans for 
an access link with the City’s water system.  He expressed concern regarding some of the 
standards in the overlay ordinance: building materials, fencing/screening, and the setback 
distance. 
 
 Brock Johnston, 1087 South St. Andrews Drive, Syracuse, is employed by Rainey 
Homes and was in attendance tonight to speak on behalf of the Rigby family.  Mr. Johnston 
showed the Miller Meadows subdivision on the map.  He said that Phase 1 was approved, but he 
wanted to know what the ramifications would be for properties that have phases coming in the 

 7



future.   He said he has some of the same concerns of the Pack family.  He explained that Rainey 
Homes has done four developments in Farmington, and he believes that trying to enforce all of 
these requirements would be difficult.  When UDOT presented its Legacy Parkway plan to 
Farmington, there were landscaping and other promises that were made to the Rigby family and 
to Farmington City.  These promises were never fulfilled.  He thinks it would be a mistake to 
require specific standards on things that cannot possibly be policed.  He also expressed his 
opinion that open space is also difficult to enforce. 
 
Public Hearing Closed  
 
 Chairman Bilton closed the public hearing at 8:45 p.m.  He asked for comments from 
the Commission.   
 
 Steve Andersen agreed that the text needs to be refined.  He thought there had been 
some good points discussed, and he suggested further meetings between staff and concerned 
property owners to work on these issues.  He said he would like to hear more comments from the 
community regarding the I-15 side of this issue.   
 
 David Petersen and the Commission had a discussion regarding signage and other 
issues.  Mr. Petersen shared an example that in the Miller Meadows subdivision, Rainey Homes 
has two large open-space lots, and the cities to the south of us want to have subdivisions that are 
similar.  He also said that the Pack property is probably the most impacted by this new 
legislation because they have the most undeveloped property in this area.  He stressed the 
importance of working with them to create a win-win situation for both.  He said that Centerville 
and Woods Cross have already made modifications, and it would be interesting to see what they 
have done.  North Salt Lake and Farmington are about the same; West Bountiful is behind us.  
 
 Clark Skeen said Quantronics has no desire or intentions to put up any signs.  He said he 
agrees that the general idea of the overlay is fine, but he would like to see the standards applied 
where they make the most sense. 
 
 There was more discussion regarding this issue, and Chairman Bilton requested that 
Staff pursue the issues of building materials, lighting, landscaping, Davis School District 
property, design standards, sound walls on the east side, setbacks, etc.  Michael Wagstaff 
commented that he would like to know what the minimum standards are regarding scenic 
byways, and he would like to have more information about the modifications that Centerville and 
Woods Cross have adopted.   
 
Motion 
 Michael Wagstaff made a motion that the Planning Commission table this item until the 
March 12, 2009 meeting to allow staff to make changes to the proposed ordinance and to allow 
any public comment deemed appropriate to be incorporated into the proposed ordinance.  Craig 
Kartchner seconded the motion, and it was approved unanimously. 
  
 
Farmington City – (Public Hearing) – Applicant is requesting a recommendation for an 
amendment to the Official Zoning Map creating a Scenic Byways Overlay Zone.  The 
general vicinity for the proposed overlay zone is Legacy Highway/I-15 south of State Street 

 8



to the Centerville City limits between 200 West and along 600 West.  The proposed overlay 
zone is associated with a proposed zone text amendment to Chapter 41 Scenic Byway 
Overlay which addresses design standards for property adjacent to and visible from 
Legacy Highway in Farmington (ZT-07-08) (Agenda Item #5)   
 
Background Information    
 

Glenn Symes said most of this amendment was covered earlier, but it was listed as a 
public hearing. 

 
Public Hearing Opened  
  
 Chairman Bilton opened the public hearing at 9:00 p.m. 
 
Public Hearing Closed 
  
 There was no one in attendance to speak regarding this Item, and Chairman Bilton 
closed the public hearing at 9:00 p.m. 
 
Motion  
   
 Jim Young made a motion that the Planning Commission table this item until the March 
12, 2009 meeting to allow staff to make changes to the proposed overlay boundary and to allow 
any public comment deemed appropriate to be incorporated into the proposed overlay zone 
boundary.  Michael Wagstaff seconded the motion, and it was unanimously approved. 
 
 
Anel Bowman – (Public Hearing) – Applicant is requesting a conditional use permit for a 
home occupation license for a home-based child care facility at 323 North Frontier Road 
(C-1-09) (Agenda Item #6)  
 
Background Information     
 

Glenn Symes said the current ordinance specifies that if a child care facility has fewer 
than eight children, they do not have to apply for a conditional use permit.  However, because 
Ms. Bowman may have more than eight children at certain times, she has applied for a permit. 

 
Public Hearing Opened     
 
 Chairman Bilton opened the public hearing at 9:02 p.m. 
 

Anel Bowman, 323 North Frontier Road, Farmington, said that in order to have the state 
grant her a license for more than eight children, she would be required to employ another adult.  
She said that four of the children who would attend the facility currently live in the home. 
 

Glenn Symes said Ms. Bowman has met all of the standards as set forth in the 
conditional use section.   

 
Public Hearing Closed     
 
 Chairman Bilton closed the public hearing at 9:05 p.m. and asked for comments from 
the Planning Commission.  Glenn Symes stated that he received an email from Nate Affleck, an 

 9



adjacent neighbor, who said he was opposed to the day care facility.  Rich LaRocco, also a 
neighbor, wrote in support of the proposal.   There was a brief discussion regarding the traffic 
that would be involved.  Craig Kartchner asked if Mr. Affleck was aware of the other 
requirements involved with approval of this Item.  Mr. Symes said he was aware of the fencing 
issues but probably not other details.    
 
Motion  
 
 Geoff Butler made a motion that the Planning Commission approve the conditional use 
permit for a home occupation license allowing for the care of no more than 16 individuals 
located at 323 North Frontier Road with the conditions listed in the staff report.  Michael 
Wagstaff seconded the motion, and it was approved by five of the Commissioners.  Steve 
Andersen voted nay because of his concern that the groundwork was not laid with all of the 
neighbors.  There was a threat made in the email that concerned him.  
 
Findings for Approval 
 

1. The proposed use of the particular location is necessary and desirable and provides a 
service which contributes to the general well-being of the community; 

2. The proposed use complies with all regulations and conditions in the Farmington City 
Zoning Ordinance for this particular use; 

3. The proposed use conforms to the goals, policies, and principles of the Comprehensive 
General Plan; 

4. The proposed use is compatible with the character of the site, adjacent properties, 
surrounding neighborhoods and other existing development; 

5. The location provides or will provide adequate utilities, transportation access, drainage, 
parking and loading space, lighting, screening, landscaping and open space, fire 
protection, and safe and convenient pedestrian and vehicular circulation;  

6. The proposed use is not detrimental to the health, safety and general welfare of persons 
residing or working in the vicinity and does not cause: 

a. Unreasonable risks to the safety of persons or property because of vehicular 
traffic or parking; 

b. Unreasonable interference with the lawful use of surrounding property; and 
c. A need for essential municipal services which cannot be reasonably met. 

 
 
America West Development – Applicant is submitting the Master Development Guidelines, 
or Specific Development Standards, for the Park Place Project Master Plan (SP-5-08) 
(Agenda Item #8) 
  
Background Information  
 

 The TOD ordinance (Chapter 18) under which the Park Place Project Master Plan was 
approved required the applicant to submit a copy of the Master Development Guidelines (MDG) 
to the Planning Commission prior to the City approving any improvements for the subject 
property.  When the application was presented to the Planning Commission for its consideration 
initially, the MDGs were not included in the report.  Section 11-18-108 of the TOD ordinance 
sets forth the standards and requirements for the MDGs.   
 

 10



OTHER BUSINESS  
 
Miscellaneous, correspondence, etc. (Agenda Item #9)    
 

1. Sign ordinance revision subcommittee Planning Commission appointees 

Glenn Symes said Staff has been looking at options to help developers regarding their 
signage.  The City would like to help them advertise their homes to generate business.  City Staff 
sent a letter to some of the bigger home builders in the City and asked them for their opinions 
regarding this issue.  Staff received a good response, and they presented the information to the 
City Council.  The City Council decided to set up a group of City Council and Planning 
Commission members to meet and discuss these issues.  Rick Dutson and Dave Hale will be the 
members from the City Council.  They will be considering residential, commercial and political 
signage throughout the City. 
 Chairman Bilton asked for three volunteers to serve on the Sign Ordinance Revision 
Subcommittee, and Jim Young, Michael Wagstaff, and Geoff Butler volunteered. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Motion  
 
 Craig Kartchner made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Jim Young seconded the 
motion, and it was unanimously approved.  The meeting was adjourned at 9:20 p.m. 
  
 
 
 
 
        
 
John Bilton, Chairman 
Farmington City Planning Commission 
 

 11


